CITY OF DEL RIO, TEXAS
DEL RIO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MEETING
COUNCIL CHAMBERS-CITY HALL
109 WEST BROADWAY ST.
SEPTEMBER 16, 2021 at 12:00 P.M.

MINUTES
CALL TO ORDER
Mr. Leo Martinez called the meeting to order at 12:03 p.m.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mr. Ruben Cisneros led the group in the recitation of the pledge.
ROLL CALL
The following members were present: Mr. Leo Martinez, Mr. Bryan Scott, Mr. Ruben
Cisneros, Ms. Rachel Beavan, Mr. Jorge Aguilar, Mrs. Shannon Brown, and Mr. Eddie
Amezcua, Jr.
The following members were absent: Dr. Michelle Brown and Mr. Al Arreola
Others Present: Ms. Ori Fernandez, Mrs. Alberta Barrett, Mrs. Anita P. Mariner, Mr.
John Sheedy, Mr. Manuel Chavez, Mr. Daniel Santee (via Zoom), and Mrs. Janice Pokrant
APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A motion was made to approve the August 19, 2021 meeting minutes.
Motion: Ms. Rachel Beavan  2": Mr. Ruben Cisneros Vote: 7-0
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS

No citizens were present to give any comments.

OTHER BUSINESS
(ACTION MAY BE TAKEN ON THESE MATTERS)
Financial Report for July 2021

Mrs. Alberta Barrett stated that the City sales tax allocation for the month of August was
$770,070.32 and the EDC portion of the sales tax allocation was $64,172.53. She stated
that the beginning balance of the Texas Community Bank account as of July 31 was
$645,730.53 and that there was $127,960.67 in deposits and $67,520.49 in withdrawals.
Interest earned was $29.05 for a total ending balance of $706,199.76. The interest rate
at Texas Community Bank is 0.06%. For the TexPool account, the beginning balance was
$63,787.41 with a complete withdrawal of $63,788.14 to the Texas Community Bank
account. The interest earned was $0.73 with an interest rate of 0.0248%. For the
NexBank account, the beginning balance was $1,327,396.45 with no deposits and no
withdrawals. The interest earned was $450.98 with an interest rate of 0.40%. Thus, the
total investments as of August 31 is $2,034,047.19.



She included a detailed balance sheet with all deposits and withdrawals.

She included a cash balance indicating the total expenses and yielding a total net cash
balance remaining at $2,002,602.

She also included a detailed list of future commitments totaling $1,171,000.

She included a long-range budget summary with future commitments through FY 2025-
2026.

A motion was made to accept the financial report.

Motion: Mr. Eddie Amezcua, Jr. 2": Mr. Ruben Cisneros Vote: 7-0
SWTIC update on aviation maintenance program

Ms. Ori Fernandez introduced SWTIC staff to give a presentation on the aviation
maintenance program. Mr. Luis Fernandez gave a brief update on the status of the
program and the cohort. FAA approved increased enrollment for SWTIC to eight
students. They hope to grow to a second cohort with a total of 16 students once they
hire a new instructor. He also mentioned that they may get approval of using
satellite/remote instruction with the high school group.

Mr. Bryan Scott asked if there is a program to assist graduates with finding jobs in Del
Rio. Mr. Fernandez stated that many of them are employed at LAFB.

Mr. Leo Martinez asked about the number of capacity for students. Mr. Fernandez
stated that they hope to get to 16 students. Mr. Eddie Amezcua, Jr. asked how easy this
would be. Mr. Fernandez stated that there has been an increased interest in this
program.

Mr. Fernandez clarified that the high school course is introductory but a good pipeline
into the SWTIC program. Mr. Ruben Cisneros asked about the ultimate goal of the
program. Mr. Fernandez stated that they would like to get the Power Plant portion of
the certification approved by the FAA and have a fully certified A&P program. He thinks
they can do this by fall of 2022.

No Motion or Action Taken
Mayor’s Economic Activity Update

Mayor Bruno Lozano gave a thorough summary that included updates on the airport
master plan, the port of entry, and Ports-to-Plains. He specifically referenced a
feasibility study that has been sent out to the EDC Board in the past. He also touched
upon the stability of the sales tax being driven partially by online sales and the need for
more warehouses in Del Rio.

No Motion or Action Taken



Update on “Field of Our Dreams” project

Mrs. Janice Pokrant, City Planner, gave the board a presentation on the history of the
project that included a budget of expenses.

Mrs. Shannon Brown left the meeting at 12:50 p.m.

Mr. Eddie Amezcua, Jr. asked if the lighting and scoreboards were the only things that
were needing funding. Mrs. Pokrant confirmed and stated that the City was pursuing a
grant for the lighting. Mr. Leo Martinez brought up operation and maintenance costs.
Mrs. Pokrant confirmed that staff was already hired for upkeep and maintenance last
year.

Mrs. Pokrant referred to the design of the sports park plan to answer some questions
the board had on location of certain features. Mrs. Rachel Beavan stated that she
would like the City to keep the board abreast of the status of the grants and financing
for this project. The board suggested that Mrs. Pokrant reach out to more community
organizations for collaboration.

Mr. Martinez directed Ms. Ori Fernandez to update their “Goals and Objectives”
working document with this project.

No Motion or Action Taken

Resolution No. 2021-007-EDC: A Resolution by the Del Rio Economic Development
Corporation (DREDC) to Authorize Funding to Support Marketing Efforts for American
Airlines

Ms. Ori Fernandez stated that this resolution formalized the DREDC’s commitment of
$40,000 towards marketing the air service. Mrs. Alberta Barrett confirmed that it was
already included in the FY 2021-2022 budget.

A motion was made to approve the resolution.

Motion: Ms. Rachel Beavan 2": Mr. Ruben Cisneros Vote: 6-0

Discussion and possible action on “Contracts for Services” for Executive Director

Mr. Manuel Chavez, Assistant City Manager, presented the history of and a proposal for
“contracts for services” to the DREDC Board. He passed out a sample of what the
contract could look like once it is finalized with outside legal counsel. He stated that it
would be reviewed annually between administration and the EDC. He proposed an
estimated amount of $86,700 for FY 2021-2022. He stated that in the past it had been
around $50,000-60,000. He added that for the next meeting an official agreement
would be formally presented for approval.

Mr. Eddie Amezcua, Jr. asked for clarification on the percentages of the salaries. Mr.
Chavez stated that it was not necessarily based on percentages but an estimated
amount that would be spent to fulfill the duties of each position. Mrs. Alberta Barrett
went through the budget to clarify questions of the amount being proposed for

administrative services. She clarified that the amount had already been budgeted for FY
2021-2022.



Mr. Bryan Scott asked about how the time spent will be justified or kept track of. Mr.
John Sheedy spoke to the board about how the EDC Executive Director’s salary would be
accounted for. Ms. Ori Fernandez gave a history of how past administration wanted the
economic development director’s salary to eventually be fully covered by the EDC
Board. Mr. Daniel Santee, outside legal counsel, provided more insight and detail on
how these contracts are typically laid out.

Mr. Scott suggested documenting the time spent on performing EDC duties. Mr.
Amezcua stated that the percentage may give the impression of “who’s in charge” of
the executive director. Mr. Leo Martinez emphasized that he wants to “co-share” the
executive director.

Mr. Jorge Aguilar left the meeting at 12:50 p.m.

Mr. Sheedy stated that he wanted the City to work together with the DREDC. Mr.
Amezcua asked about when the contract would affect the budget. Mrs. Barrett clarified
it was accounted for already in this budget and the intent of a contract is to keep the set
amount as consistent as possible.

A more formal contract will be brought forth at the next meeting.

No Motion or Action Taken
Discussion and possible action on the DREDC FY 2020-2021 Goals and Objectives

Ms. Ori Fernandez highlighted the updates for the current projects underway, including
the lane expansion project at the bridge, the air service marketing funding, the runway
expansion project (update to airport master plan), and the business incubator project.
She stated that she would add the “Field of Our Dreams” project to the document.

No Motion or Action Taken
Economic Activity Update

Ms. Rachel Beavan mentioned that Ollie’s just very recently opened. Mr. Leo Martinez
mentioned that there’s lots of construction all over town.

No Motion or Action Taken

Confirm next meeting date

The future meeting date was set for October 21.
No Motion or Action Taken

ADJOURNMENT

There was no further business to come before the DREDC Board; therefore, Mr. Leo
Martinez adjourned the meeting at 1:51 p.m.

ATTEST:



g

Leo Martinez, bREDC President ‘ﬁldie Amezcua, Jr., DREDC Vfce President




